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Addendum No. 2 
 Review the following changes/additions/clarifications to Invitation to Negotiate (ITN) No. 18-19-MH 

 Atlassian Hosting Services for USF to be addressed in submitted proposals:  

 

Below are USF’s responses to vendor questions received for ITN 18-19-MH. 

 
 

Questions from Tec-Link, received 1/17/2018 

1. Would USF IT be open to a proven track record Atlassian Cloud Solutions provider?  

Yes, we are looking for an Atlassian Cloud provider that meets the required criteria. 

 

Questions from Comskil, received 1/18/2018 

2. Are you accepting and evaluating bids from companies outside of the state of Florida?  

USF will consider all qualified vendors that have the ability to provide the services described in  

ITN 18-19-MH. 

 

http://www.usf.edu/business-finance/purchasing/staff-procedures/index.aspx
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Questions from Charter Global, Tech Consulting, received 1/18/2018 

3. We wanted to know is this Atlassian hosting project-where you will need a company to transfer the on 

premise data over to AWS cloud?   

Yes.   We are agnostic to the hosting platform, and are mostly interested in the system being moved out 

of our datacenter.  If we have to select a cloud datacenter, Azure would be preferred. 

 

4. Do you need this person onsite or remote for the project or can be done with both? 

Preference is Remote. 

 

5. I saw one of the requirements was that you have to be HIPAA certified-do you know how we can get 

certified or do we just need to be compliant based on the regulations? 

 

You have to be willing to sign a Business Associate Agreement (BAA) with the USF privacy office. An 

example of this would be from the federal gov't web site: 

 https://www.hhs.gov/hipaa/for-professionals/covered-entities/sample-business-associate-agreement-

provisions/index.html   

 

We prefer a company to be SOC2 compliant, here's a link to the site that goes through the types of 

things we are asking for: 

http://www.usf.edu/it/about-us/issp017addendum.docx   

 

Questions from Praecipio Consulting, received 1/17/2018 

6. The Upgrades, “Mitigations, Merge Questionnaire” is completed and can be viewed or downloaded from 

the USF Purchasing web site. The completed questionnaire has been attached as a file to ITN 18-19-MH.  

http://www.usf.edu/business-finance/purchasing/public-bids/pur-itn-8.aspx  

Questions from Column Technologies, received 1/29/2018 

7. What are your current license tiers for all products in scope for this migration  

The current licensing scheme on-premise is unlimited. 

8. Are you using the Data center version of the Atlassian products or Server version? 

 

a. Based on your requirement for Disaster Recovery, Data Center would be our recommendation  

We are using the Server version.  

 

9. Do you need us to include a Confluence and Jira Dev environment in the hosting cost? (It looks like Jira 

has dev environments, but Confluence does not)  

Yes.  The expectation is that there will be a development environment for all Atlassian products that we 

are discussing. 

10. What type of SSO does the University employ (i.e.: SAML, Kerberos, etc.)? 

We have two types of SSO services: CAS and Shibboleth. They are SAML 2.0 compliant. 

11. What is the use case around your Bomgar integration to JSD? 

Integrating Bomgar will improve service levels, centralize support processes, and strengthen 

compliance.  The integration will increase effectiveness of our technicians by allowing them to launch 

remote support sessions from an open ticket and have session details including chat transcripts, notes, 

https://www.hhs.gov/hipaa/for-professionals/covered-entities/sample-business-associate-agreement-provisions/index.html
https://www.hhs.gov/hipaa/for-professionals/covered-entities/sample-business-associate-agreement-provisions/index.html
http://www.usf.edu/it/about-us/issp017addendum.docx
http://www.usf.edu/business-finance/purchasing/public-bids/pur-itn-8.aspx
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and recordings automatically appended to the ticket within JSD. Bomgar will also provide automatic 

ticket generation when customers come directly to the chat portal in seek of assistance. 

 

12. Which Bomgar product do you have?  Cloud, or on-premise appliance?  

We have an on-premise virtual appliance. 

 

13. How many concurrent users for Bomgar? 

We have 33 licenses across both support sites. 

14. Will Bomgar move to the hosted environment or is it already in the cloud? 

Bomgar is currently installed on premises. 

The long-term intention is to move this system to either 1) a Hosted model (in which case it could 

migrate along with the Atlassian systems if that made sense financially), or 2) a Bomgar cloud SaaS 

platform (dependent on integrations that might be required between Bomgar and Atlassian, and SaaS 

offerings from Bomgar). 

 

15. What release of ServiceNow is USF on?  

Presently on Helsinki expected to be on Jakarta by the end of April. 

16. How many modules of ServiceNow are in scope for the migration (i.e.: incident, problem, change, 

service portal etc.)?  

Only incident management 

 

17. How configured / customized are the modules / form layouts from question 16?  

Incident Module: Minor modifications to the form layout. SLA, Workflow and Nonfictions are all custom 

to USF.  

a. Are there a significant number of categories/subcategories?  

72 Categories 

 22 Subcategories  

18. How many items are in the Service Catalog? Can you provide a few examples of how complex the 

Service Requests are within the catalog?  

Not in scope of this ITN. 

a. How customized is the portal in terms of look and feel? Can you provide screenshots?  

Not in scope of this ITN. 

19. How many custom workflows are in scope for the migration? Can you provide a few examples of how 

complex the workflows in use today are?  
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There are 5 workflows in the incident management module. Here is the most complex of the five.  

 
a. How complicated are the change management processes?  

Not in scope of this ITN. 

20. How many SLAs are in scope for migration? Are there custom workflows for these SLAs? 

5 SLA’s in incident management, each one has their own workflow. 

21. How are users imported to ServiceNow (i.e.: AD?)  

They come from the Data Warehouse.  

a. If you are importing from AD, how many OUs contain users?  

#N/A 

b. How many fulfillment groups are in use today? Are they being imported through AD? 

99 

c. Are tickets routed using auto assignment rules? If so how many?  

No. 

22. Is the CMDB currently in use?  

No. 

 

a. Is a migration of the CMDB in scope for this RFP?  

#N/A 

b. How are the CIs imported into the CMDB? 

#N/A 

23. Are there any other third-party integrations to ServiceNow?  

Building Import 

 Room Import 

24. Is a complete migration of tickets and ticket history in scope?  

No. 

25. Does the current ServiceNow deployment utilize email ingestion? Can you provide a description of the 

use case? (i.e.: how many inbound action rules)  

Yes, inbound Email actions are setup in ServiceNow.  

- Create Incident: Contains code that parses the inbound email and assigns the incident to the 

appropriate assignment group.  

- Create Incident (Forward): Contains code that parses the inbound email and assigns the incident to the 
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appropriate assignment group. 

 - Update Incident (BP): Reopens previously resolved incidents when the users replies. 

26. Does ServiceNow have any custom notifications or custom templates that should be migrated during 

this RFP?  

No. 

27. Do you have standard support from Atlassian today?  

We receive email support from Atlassian. 

28. Is 7x24 support required for non-critical issues? 

No. 

29. Would you like us to include upgrades (1x per year) in your cost? 

Yes. 

Questions from Forty 8 Fifty Labs, received 1/29/2018 

30. Service Now  

a. Which service now modules will need to be migrated to Jira Service Desk? 

None. 

b. How many ServiceNow seats are currently licensed? 

459 

c. Can you provide detail on how ServiceNow is currently used (ticketing, escalations, change 

management, etc?) 

Incident response for the purpose of this ITN. 

 

d. Can you provide the top 3 pain-points with ServiceNow? 

ServiceNow seems to get a lot of things right, so it is difficulty to build a list of three. Also, it was 

recently brought to our knowledge that our instance of ServiceNow is missing two upgrades. 

Out of scope 

 

e. Is ServiceNow data being migrated or just workflows/processes 

Not migrated, but incident management workflow will be migrated 

 

f. Are there any external system integrations, i.e. monitoring systems, knowledge base, etc. 

Bomgar 

 Reporting through PowerBI 

 Active Directory and LDAP integrations 

 AD or Web Services for client identity 

31. Jira  

a. How many Jira licenses do you currently have, and what kind (software, service desk, or core)? 

The completed questionnaire has been attached as a file to ITN 18-19-MH. 

http://www.usf.edu/business-finance/purchasing/public-bids/pur-itn-8.aspx 

 

b. How many projects are currently active in Jira (and what kind)? 

354 total projects 

 

http://www.usf.edu/business-finance/purchasing/public-bids/pur-itn-8.aspx
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2 Service Desk Projects 

2 Business Projects 

350 Software Projects 

 

c. Will all projects/data (active and historical) be migrated? 

Yes.  

d. What is the size of your attachments? 

Currently we have 63684 total attachments consuming 23 GB of space. 

e. Are there External system integrations required or needed?  

BOMGAR, ServiceNow integration, GITHUB, PowerBi 

32. Confluence  

a. How many confluence licenses do you currently have? 

 

The completed questionnaire has been attached as a file to ITN 18-19-MH. 

http://www.usf.edu/business-finance/purchasing/public-bids/pur-itn-8.aspx 

b. How many spaces are currently in Confluence? 

122 total 49 sites 73 personal 

c. What is the size of the confluence database?  file folders? 

 

Size: 16.8 GB 

 

Current Version Content: 24242 

d. Is your confluence instance open to the public in any way? 

Yes. 

e. How many users are expected to access your confluence site at one time? 

 

Current estimated usage 150 users. 

 

 

Note: Please note receipt of this addendum by signing and returning with your proposal response 

      

__________________________________________ 

        Authorized Signature & Date 

__________________________________________ 

        Print Name 

__________________________________________ 

        Company Name 
 

http://www.usf.edu/business-finance/purchasing/public-bids/pur-itn-8.aspx

